
Shropshire Council
Legal and Democratic Services
Shirehall
Abbey Foregate
Shrewsbury
SY2 6ND

Date:   Monday, 2 October 2017

Committee: 
Performance Management Scrutiny Committee

Date: Tuesday, 10 October 2017
Time: 2.00 pm
Venue: Shrewsbury Room, Shirehall, Abbey Foregate, Shrewsbury, Shropshire, SY2 

6ND

You are requested to attend the above meeting. 
The Agenda is attached

Claire Porter
Head of Legal and Democratic Services (Monitoring Officer)

Members of Performance Management Scrutiny Committee
Claire Wild (Chair)
Gwilym Butler (Vice-Chair)
Karen Calder
Roger Evans
Hannah Fraser

Alan Mosley
Cecilia Motley
Peggy Mullock
Dave Tremellen
Leslie Winwood

Your Committee Officer is: 

Julie Fildes  Committee Officer
Tel:  01743 257723
Email:  julie.fildes@shropshire.gov.uk



AGENDA
1 Apologies for Absence and Substitutions 

2 Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 

Members are reminded that they must not participate in the discussion or voting 
on any matter in which they have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest and should 
leave the room prior to the commencement of the debate.

3 Public Question Time 

To receive any questions, statements or petitions from the public of which 
members of the public have given notice.  Deadline for notification for this 
meeting is 5pm on Wednesday 4th October 2017.

4 Member Question Time 

To receive any questions of which members of the Council have given notice.  
Deadline for notification for this meeting is 5pm on Wednesday 4th October 
2017.

5 Call-in Minimum Income Guarantee (Pages 1 - 8)

A copy of the Call-In Notice received from the Leader of the Council’s Liberal 
Democrat Group attached marked 5, along with the report considered by 
Cabinet on 6th September 2017, also marked 5.

The decision has been called in by the Liberal Democrat Group as detailed in 
the Call-In Notice.  The Scrutiny Committee is asked to consider the decision 
taken by Cabinet on 6th September 2017.

6 Date/Time of next meeting of the Committee 

The Committee is scheduled to next meet at 2.00pm on Wednesday 22nd 
November 2017.



The Minimum Income Guarantee 
[MIG]
The cabinet decision was

RESOLVED: 

That the Personal Budgets Contribution Policy be updated for 2017/2018, retaining 
Shropshire Council’s existing levels of Minimum Income Guarantee [MIG], at £194.50 per 
week for a single person and £148.50 per week for a member of a couple.

On behalf of the Shropshire Council  Liberal Democrat Group I wish to call this decision in.

Cabinet were present with a number of options and chose option 1

This if adopted would mean that a single pensioner affected by this decision will have 
his/her contribution increased by 8.3%. One of a couple would have their contribution 
increased by 28.6%.

This increase is far in excess of any other increase in charges that the council made when 
discussing the annual increase in charges earlier in the year. We consider this increase to 
be excessive. 

At present any increase in contributions does not form any part of the adopted Financial 
Strategy so no compensatory savings need to made should this increase not take place.  
 Any income raised by this decision can therefore be considered as a bonus to the council 
and is extra to any previously shown. 

The increase is means tested but it does target those most in need, those who need help in 
coping with infirmities. Who need help in living from day to day, many being the most 
vulnerable in our society.

It is noted that the paper did not contain any  reference to an EIISA Document or 
consideration of it. Consideration of the effect that increase if implemented would have. We 
feel that this is an omission and should have been included, particularly as the 
recommendation proposed for certain individuals that the charge they pay should be 
increased by 28.6%.

We note government did not increase the MIG but what is proposed here is disproportionate 
and in effect taking away, reducing the guarantee that Shropshire gives to those in need. For 
example, those pensioners who do not receive any Adult Social Care from Shropshire 
Council will get receive all the increases awarded them in full. Those who do receive help 
will face an increase of up to 28.6%. Many feel what is proposed is unfair and 
disproportionate, especially when compared to other increases that council agreed earlier in 
the year. It will in effect wipe out any increase they may have had in pension.  



 We ask that this decision be looked at by Scrutiny. That they should look into how 
these charges may affect Shropshire Residents, those residents who it is recognised 
are in need of help from this council. Scrutiny to consider if cabinet should revisit this 
decision and consider if a smaller increase or even no increase should be put 
forward for this year. 

 In the report considered and adopted by Council in February the statement shown 
below was included. This may not be classed as a new charge but it does increase 
the charge made to certain residents by a very much larger percentage  than any 
approved by council in February. This consideration was not made by cabinet before 
reaching its decision in September. Scrutiny is asked to consider should this be 
considered and have they any recommendations to make to cabinet as a result of 
considering it.

 It is noted that the paper did not contain any  reference to an EIISA Document or 
consideration of it. Consideration of the effect that increase if implemented would 
have. We feel that this is an omission and should have been included, particularly as 
the recommendation proposed for certain individuals that the charge they pay should 
be increased by 28.6%.

 In the February report it is noted that the Council was due to receive from the item 
listed as “Adult Discretionary Income” a total of £1.133m for 2017/18. If this increase 
is considered under this title it would increase the income in this budget line by 
29.1%. Is this fair and proportionate that the individuals targeted by this proposal pay 
this huge increase.  

Extract from the February report on Fees and charges made to council in February 

3.1 ………………………Consideration of new charges will take into account the 
requirements of the Human Rights Act, any necessary environmental appraisals, the need 
for Equalities Impact Needs Assessments and in some cases any necessary service user 
feedback.

Roger Evans



Performance Management Scrutiny Committee, 10th October 2017

Committee and Date

Cabinet 

6 September 2017

Adult Services Non-Residential Charging Policy 2017/18:
The Minimum Income Guarantee (MIG)

Responsible Officer:   Andy Begley, Director of Adult Services

Email: Andy.begley@shropshire.gov.uk    Tel:  01743 258911

1. Summary

1.1 The Minimum Income Guarantee (“MIG”) is the amount that a recipient of Adult Social 
Care must be left with to pay for everyday living costs. 

1.2 The late notification of the statutorily required MIG for 2017/18 by the Government 
meant that the Personal Budgets Contribution Policy for 2017/18 (which includes 
Shropshire Council’s MIG) could not be prepared in time for inclusion within the 
Council’s Fees and Charges Report.  Shropshire Council is now able to update its 
Personal Budgets Contributions Policy following the notification of the statutorily 
required MIG from the Department of Health.

1.3 The Government has increased state retirement pension and pension credit by 2.5% 
for 2017/18.  The Department of Health, however, has not increased the statutorily 
required MIG.  

1.4 The statutorily required MIG is £189.00 per week for a single person and £144.30 per 
week for a member of a couple.  Shropshire Council’s existing MIG is already set 
above the statutorily required levels, and is currently £194.50 per week for a single 
person and £148.50 per week for a member of a couple.  Although Central 
Government requires that local authorities comply with the statutorily required MIG 
as a minimum, local authorities have the discretion to set the MIG at a higher rate, 
should they choose to do so, thereby allowing users of our services to keep additional 
income.  

1.5 The MIG affects the level of the non-residential care contribution levied by the 
Council, and therefore the level of income received.  Further detail is provided on this 
below, but in summary, the lower the level of the MIG, the greater the income that 
can be levied by the Council in the form of non-residential care contributions.  

1.6 This report recommends the retention of Shropshire Council’s existing rates of MIG, 
with no increase within 2017/18.



2

2. Recommendations

2.1 That the Personal Budgets Contribution Policy is updated for 2017/18, retaining 
Shropshire Council’s existing levels of Minimum Income Guarantee, at £194.50 per 
week for a single person and £148.50 per week for a member of a couple.  

REPORT

3. Risk Assessment and Opportunities Appraisal

3.1 Shropshire Council, like all other local authorities, is facing a significant increase in 
the cost of care.  The demand for care following hospital discharge alone has more 
than doubled in the past 12 months.

3.2 Added to this, the average care package cost continues to rise at a rate above 
inflation.  The average weekly gross cost of care packages rose from £418 in May 
2014 to £500 in October 2016.  This represents an average increase in costs of 8% 
per annum.  

3.3 A growth model for Adults Social Care costs has been developed, using existing 
data to forecast costs and demand in future years.  Demographic change, the 
ageing population and increasing complexity and cost of care mean that the cost to 
Shropshire Council of Adults Social Care is forecast to increase by £8m per year 
over the next three years.  

3.4 The growth model for Adult Services has also demonstrated that the proportion of 
care costs that Shropshire Council is recovering as client income is reducing, as 
costs are increasing at a faster rate than income is being received.  

3.5 Therefore, in order to take action to levy as much client contributions to costs as 
possible the Council would reduce the MIG to the statutorily required levels. 
However this would have the effect of reducing service user income.

3.6 As an example, a single pensioner would see their contribution rise by £5.50 a week 
if the Council reverted to the government-set £189.00 MIG rather than the current 
Council-set £194.50. Typically this could represent a 5% to 10% increase in their 
contribution, when their pension has increased by only 2.5%

3.7 It is recommended, therefore, that Shropshire Council simply does not change the 
MIG for 2017/18.  This would have the effect of generating as much additional client 
contributions as possible without leaving service users worse off.   

4. Financial Implications

4.1 Five options for retaining or increasing MIG are set out within Appendix 1.  

 Option 1 (retain existing MIG) (recommended) would generate estimated 
additional income of £330,000 for the Council.



3

 Option 2 (increase existing MIG by 1%) would generate approximately £180,000 
additional income for the Council. 

 Option 3 (increase existing MIG by 1.25%) would generate approximately £140,000 
additional income for the Council. 

 Option 4 (increase existing MIG by 1.5%) would generate approximately £110,000 
additional income for the Council. 

 Option 5 (increase MIG in line with 25% buffer) would result in a loss of income of 
approximately £20,000 to the Council

4.2 Option 1 would effectively cancel out a service user’s increased pension.  A single 
older person receiving pension credit would receive a weekly increase of £4.90 in 
their income, and their contribution would increase by £4.40, leaving them with 50p 
additional income per week.  One of a couple would receive £3.40 additional 
pension but would incur increased charges of £3.25, leaving them with 15p 
additional income per week. Therefore, if Shropshire Council’s MIG were to remain 
the same as in 2016/17, the financial consequence for service users over retirement 
age would be that their weekly increase in pension would be absorbed almost 
entirely by the increase in their contribution to their care and support.

4.3 This option is recommended as Shropshire Council’s MIG levels are already above 
those set out in statute by the Department of Health.  This option results in the 
greatest level of income being recovered by the Council without service users being 
penalised.  

4.4 Under option 2, the benefit of the increased pension and pension credit would be 
shared between the service user and Shropshire Council.  The service user would 
receive approximately 50% of the benefit of their increased pension income.  A 
single older person would therefore receive net additional income of £2.40 per week 
and one of a couple would receive net additional income of £1.65 per week.

4.5 Under options 3 and 4, the benefit of increased pension and pension credit would 
be shared between the service user and Shropshire Council, but the Council would 
retain lesser shares of the benefit. 

4.6 Under option 5, the benefit of increased pension and pension credit would be felt 
purely by the service user, to the extent that it would result in a reduction in their 
contributions for non-residential care of £0.30 per week for a single person and 
£0.25 per week for one of a couple.  This would result in a loss of income to 
Shropshire Council of approximately £20,000.    

5. Background

5.1 When a financial assessment is made for non-residential services, the MIG is the amount 
that a citizen must be left with to pay for everyday living costs. This amount varies according 
to age, relationship status and level of disability-related benefits awarded.  Prior to April 
2015, Local Authorities applied this by adding a 25% buffer to specific components of a 
citizen's actual income or entitlement.  This meant that for every £1 increase in their welfare 
benefits, they would still be better off by 25 pence.

5.2 From April 2015 the minimum level of MIG has been determined by Government statute. 



4

The Department of Health has frozen its MIG in 2016 and 2017, but has increased the basic 
state pension and means-tested Pension Credit.  Applying the Council’s existing MIG to the 
increased allowances for these older people in 2017/18 will mean that the majority of their 
increase will be taken as an increase in their contribution. For a single pensioner this will 
mean an increase of £4.40 in their weekly contribution, and for a member of a couple it will 
be an increase of £3.25. 

5.3 An alternative, pursued by several councils including Shropshire Council in 2016/17, is of 
increasing the MIG in line with ‘prior 2016/17’ standard practice of the 25% buffer.  This 
caused a reduction in contributions of £0.90 a week for as single pensioner in 2016/17, and 
£0.82 per week for one of a couple.  If this practice were repeated in 2017/18, as per option 
5 in Appendix 1, it would result in a reduction in contributions of £0.30 per week for a single 
person and £0.25 for one of a couple.  

6. Additional Information

6.1 To date, client contributions within 2017/18 have been maintained at 2016/17 levels, as 
officers have not wished to pre-empt elected members’ decision on retaining or increasing 
the MIG.  In order to enable officers to notify service users of an increase to charges, and 
not to provide undue concern to service users, it is recommended that increases to 
contributions are not backdated, but are simply increased from as soon as is practicable.  This 
would mean that any increase in income (as set out in appendix 1) as a result of the decision 
taken, would be received pro rata.  For example, if option 1 were agreed, as recommended, 
this would be likely to result in six months’ worth of increased client contributions in 
2017/18, which would equate to additional income of approximately £165,000.

List of Background Papers (This MUST be completed for all reports, but does 
not include items containing exempt or confidential information)
Personal Budgets Contributions Policy 2016-17

Cabinet Member (Portfolio Holder)
Cllr Lee Chapman, Portfolio Holder for Health and Adult Social Care

Local Member

Appendices
Appendix 1 – Options for Retaining or Increasing the Minimum Income Guarantee



Appendix 1
Options for Retaining or Increasing the Minimum Income Guarantee

2017/18

Single Pensioner 2016/17

Option 1: 
Retain Current 
MIG

Option 2: 
Increase 
Existing SC MIG 
by 1%

Option 3: 
Increase 
Existing SC MIG 
by 1.25%

Option 4: 
Increase 
Existing SC MIG 
by 1.5%

Option 5: 
Increase Buffer 
Amount to 25%

       
Total Income* £272.55 £277.45 £277.45 £277.45 £277.45 £277.45
DRE** £25.00 £25.50 £25.50 £25.50 £25.50 £25.50
MIG £194.50 £194.50 £196.40 £196.90 £197.40 £199.20
Contribution £53.05 £57.45 £55.55 £55.05 £54.55 £52.75
       
Change in Income  £4.90 £4.90 £4.90 £4.90 £4.90
Change in Charge  £4.40 £2.50 £2.00 £1.50 -£0.30
Service User Retains  £0.50 £2.40 £2.90 £3.40 £5.20

2017/18

One of a Couple 2016/17

Option 1: 
Retain Current 
MIG

Option 2: 
Increase 
Existing SC MIG 
by 1%

Option 3: 
Increase 
Existing SC MIG 
by 1.25%

Option 4: 
Increase 
Existing SC MIG 
by 1.5%

Option 5: 
Increase Buffer 
Amount to 25%

       
Total Income £173.88 £177.28 £177.28 £177.28 £177.28 £177.28
DRE £14.00 £14.15 £14.15 £14.15 £14.15 £14.15
MIG £148.50 £148.50 £150.00 £150.40 £150.70 £152.00
Contribution £11.38 £14.63 £13.13 £12.73 £12.43 £11.13
       
Change in Income  £3.40 £3.40 £3.40 £3.40 £3.40
Change in Charge  £3.25 £1.75 £1.35 £1.05 -£0.25
Service User Retains  £0.15 £1.65 £2.05 £2.35 £3.65

Estimated Additional (Reduced) Income to SC £330,000 £180,000 £140,000 £110,000 -£20,000



6

*Based on typical service user income of £159.35 pension + £55.65 attendance allowance + £62.45 single person disability living allowance 
(2017/18 weekly rates)
**2017/18 figure represents anticipated increase based on inflating typical constituent parts


	Agenda
	5 Call-in Minimum Income Guarantee
	14 Minimum Income Guarantee (MIG) inc Appx


